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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Members of
T-Hills Private Limited
(formerly, Jaganmata Property Developers Private Limited)

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of T-Hills Private Limited (formerly,
Jaganmata Property Developers Private Limited) (“the Company”), which comprise the Balance sheet
as at March 31 2022, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of Other Comprehensive
Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013, as amended
(“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2022, its
loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs),
as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further
described in the ‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements’ section of our
report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics’ issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to Note 2.4 to the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2022, which
describes the management’s evaluation of Covid-19 impact on the business operations and cash flows
of the Company. In view of the uncertain economic conditions, the management’s evaluation of the
impact on the subsequent periods is highly dependent upon conditions as they evolve. Qur opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31, 2022. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters: For each matter be
description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided in that context.
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We have determined the matters described below to be the key audit matters to be communicated in our
report. We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the ‘ Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements’ section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our
audit included the performance of procedurcs designed to respond to our assessment of the rigks of
matenal misstatement of the financial statements. !he results of our audit procedures, including the
procedures performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the

accompanying financial statements.

Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

Assessing the recoverability of carrying value of inventory (as described in note 07 of the

financial statements)

As at March 31, 2022, the carrying value
of the inventory of ongoing real estate
projects is Rs. 27,639.95 lakhs.

The inventories are carried at the lower of
the cost and net realisable value (‘“NRV”).
The determination of the NRV involves
estimates based on prevailing market
conditions and taking into account the
estimated future selling price, cost to
complete projects and selling costs.

We identified the assessment of the
carrying value of inventory as a key audit
matter due to the significance of the
balance to the financial statements as a
whole and the involvement of estimates
and judgement in the assessment.

Our procedures in assessing the carrying value of the
inventories included, among the others, the following:

- We read and evaluated the accounting policies with
respect to inventories.

- We assessed the Company’s methodology applied in
assessing the carrying value under the relevant
accounting  standards including current market
conditions and effects of COVID-19 pandemic, applied
in assessing the net realizable value, launch of the
project, development plan and future sales.

- We obtained and tested the computation involved in
assessment of carrying value and the net realisable value/
net recoverable value including the effects COVID-19 on
test check basis.

- We made inquiries with management with respect to
Inventory property on test check basis to understand key
assumptions used in determination of the net
realizable/net recoverable value.

- We compared the realisable amount of the asset to the
carrying value in books on test check basis.

Compliance with repayment terms of
statements)

borrowings (as described in note 12 of the financial

As at March 31, 2022, the outstanding
amount of borrowings is Rs. 26,385.76
lakhs. The borrowings are the key source
of funds taken to finance its real estate
development project.

We consider compliance with repayment
terms of borrowings as a key audit matter
as this is a key consideration for
appropriate  classification of loan
balances and relevant disclosures thereon
in the financial statements. Further,
compliance with repayment terms is part

of management’s assessment of

Our procedures in relation to compliance with repayment
terms of borrowings include, among others, the
following:
- Obtained an understanding of the process and testing
the internal controls over timely repayment of
borrowings.

- We tested the repayments of borrowings to the extent
applicable by reading the underlying contracts for
repayments schedules, comparing the actual cash flows
with the repayment schedules and tracing the amounts
paid as per books of account to the bank statements of
the Company.
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Key audit matters

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

evaluating its gearing and liguidity

profile.

- We assessed the maturity profile of the borrowings to
evaluate the classification and disclosure of borrowings
on test check basis.

- We obtained direct confirmation from lenders and
compared the halances confirmed hy them with the
halaners as per the haoks nf accounts, an test check
basis.

Recording of related party transactions
statements)

and disclosures (as described in note 21 of the financial

The  Company  has  undertaken
transactions with its related parties which
includes lending and borrowing of loans
and other transactions to or from the
related parties.

We identified the recording of related
party transactions and its disclosure as set
out in respective notes to the financial
statements as a key audit matter due to the

Our audit procedures included, among others, the
following:

- Obtained and read the Company’s policies, processes
and procedures in respect of identifying related parties,
obtaining approval, recording and disclosure of related
party transactions.

- Read minutes of shareholder meetings, board meetings
and minutes of meetings of those charged with

govemance, as applicable, in connection with
Company’s assessment of related party transactions
being in the ordinary course of business at arm’s length.

significance of transactions with related
parties and regulatory compliance
thereon.

- Tested, on a sample basis, related party transactions
with the underlying contracts, confirmation letters and
other supporting documents.

- Agreed the related party information disclosed in the
financial statements with the underlying supporting
documents, on a sample basis.

Other Information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether such other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement
of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in
equity of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India,
including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specitied under section 133 ot the Act read with
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgements and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the
going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls.

» [Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concemn. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our

—
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auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the fihancial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements for the financial year ended March 31,
2022 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless
law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021, included in these financial
statements, have been audited by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those
statements on June 22, 2021.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the
“Annexure 1” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2. Asrequired by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so
far as it appears from our examination of those books;

(c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss including the Statement of Other
Comprehensive Income, Lhe Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity dealt
with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specitied under Section 133 ot the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended;




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2022
taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on
March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(1) With respect o the adequucy of the internal financial controls with reterence to tmancial
statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in
“Annexure 2” to this report;

{g) The matter deseribed in Emphasis nf Matter paragraph ahnve, in anr apinian, may have an
adverse effect on the functioning of the Company.

(h) The Company has not paid any managerial remuneration to its directors during the year and
hence provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V of the Act are not applicable to the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2022;

(1) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with
Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in
its financial statements — Refer Note 25(b) to the financial statements;

ii.  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for
which there were any provision for material foreseeable losses;

m.  ‘I'here were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education
and Protection Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 23(v) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or
loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or
kind of funds) by the company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign
entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as
disclosed in the note 23(vi) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the
company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shall,
whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or
provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clausc (a) and (b) contain any material misstatement.
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v.  No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm ch}éiion Number: 101019W/E300004

Membership Number: 209567

UDIN: 22209567AJLMTR8769

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 23, 2022
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Annexure ‘1’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: T-Hills Private Limited (“the Company™)

In terms of the information and cxplanations sought by us and given by the company and the
haaks of account and records examined by us in the nermal courso of audit and to the best of our
knowledge and beliely we state (hat:

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(b)

(a)

(b)

(©)

The Company does not own any property, plant and eqnipment and intangihle assets
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(a)(A) and (B) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company does not own any property, plant and equipment. Accordingly, the provisions of
clamar 3)(h) af the Order are nat applicable to the Company,

There is no immovable property held by the Company included in property, plant and
equipment and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The Company does not own any property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i)(d) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made
thereunder as disclosed in the note 23(i) to the financial statements.

Having regard to the nature of inventory comprising of work in progress of project under
development, the management has conducted physical verification of inventory by way of
verification of title deeds, site visits and certification of extent of work completion by competent
persons, at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion the coverage and the procedure
of such verification by the management is appropriate. Discrepancies of 10% or more in
aggregate for each class of inventory were not noticed on such physical verification.

The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in
aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point of time of the year on the basis
of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(ii)(b) of the
Order 1s not applicable to the Company.

During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood
guarantee or provided security to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other
parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(a) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

During the year the Company has not made investments, provided guarantees, provided security
and granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms, Limited Liability
Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(iii)(b) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted loans and advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requircment to report on
clause 3(iii)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(d)
(&)
®
(iv)
)
(vi)
(vi)  (a)
(b)
(viii)
(ix) (2
(b)
(©)
(d)
(e)

The Company has not granted loans or advances in the nature of loans to companies, firms,
Limited Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(iii)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Thers wetre no loano or advanoe in tho nature of loan grantod to companics, tirma, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(ii1)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited
Liability Partnerships or any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause
3(in)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

There are no loans, investments, guarantees, and security in respect of which provisions of
sections 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) are applicable and accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3(iv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has neither accepted any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts
which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act
and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly, the requirement to report
on clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Since the provisions of Section 148(1) of the Act are not applicable to the Company, the
requirements relating to report on clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

Undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, income-tax, duty of custom, cess
and other statutory dues have generally been regularly deposited with the appropriate
authorities though there have been slight delays in few cases. According to the information and
explanations given to us and based on audit procedures performed by us, no undisputed amounts
payable in respect of these statutory dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable. The provisions relating to provident fund
and employees’ state insurance are not applicable to the Company.

There are no dues of goods and services tax, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, customs duty,
excise duty, value added tax, cess, goods and service tax and other statutory dues which have
not been deposited on account of any dispute.

The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the
books of account, in the tax asscssments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the
year as disclosed in note 23 (vii) to the financial statements. Accordingly, the requirement to
report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment
of interest thereon to any lender.

The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or
government or any government authority.

Term loans were applied for the purpose for which the loans were obtained.

On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, no funds raised on short-
term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(ix)(e) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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(f)

(a)

(b)

(b)

(©

(2)

(b)

(@)

(®)

(©)

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on Clause 3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further
public offer (including debt instruments) and hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)(a)
of the Urder is not applicable to the Company.

"Ihe Company has not made any preterential allotment or private placement of shares/fully or
partially or optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the
requirement to report on clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

No material fraud by the Company or no material fraud on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

During the year, no report under sub-section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by us in Form ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by
the Company during the year.

The Company is not a nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013.
Therefore, the requirement to report on clause 3(xii)(a,b and ¢) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

Transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 188 of the Act where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as
required by the applicable accounting standards. The provisions of section 177 of the Act are
not applicable to the Company and accordingly the requirements to report under clause 3(xiii)
of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the Company.

The Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its
business.

The internal audit reports of the Company issued till the date of the audit report, for the period
under audit have been considered by us.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directars or persons
connected with its directors and hence requirement to report on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

The provisions of section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 (2 of 1934) are not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Company is not engaged in any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause (xvi)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations made by Reserve
Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.
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(d)

There is no Core Investment Company as part of the Group, and hence, the requirement to
report on clause 3(xvi)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

Pl Connpany Tias meis] cashe losses aiounting w Rs 8917 lakhs in the cunent year and
amoeunting fo Red Takhe in the immdiately prvseding Gnoaneiol yen

The previous statuton'/ auditors of the Company have resigned during the year and we have
taken into consideration the issues, objections or concerns raised by the outgoing auditors.

On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements, the ageing
and expected dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other
information accompanying the financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors
and management plans and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the
assumptions, the Company has obtained the letter of financial support from its holding
company, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that Company is not
capable of meeting its liabilities, existing at the date of balance sheet, as and when they fall due
within a period of one year from the balance sheet date.

We, further state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company and our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

The provisions of section 135 of the Act in relation to Corporate Social Responsibility is not
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xx)(a) and (b)
of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountapts

D SV%

Partner

Membership Number: 209567

ICAI Firm w’on Number: 101049W/E300004

arsh Ranka

UDIN: 22209567AJLMTRE8769

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 23, 2022
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Annexure ‘2’ referred to in paragraph under the heading “Report on other legal and regulatory
requirements” of our report of even date

Re: T-Hills Private Limited (“the Company”)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) )

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of T-Hills Private
Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2022, in conjunction with our audit of the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (“ICAI™).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™)
and the Standards on Auditing as specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to
an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by ICAI Those Standards and the Guidance Note
require that we comply with cthical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements
was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
finnmeial oontrolo with roference to these (inuncial stulements und their operating cffectivencss. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to these financial statements, assessing the
tisk (hal a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal confrol based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Jjudgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to these financial
statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to these financial statements
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to

provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.




S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered Accountants

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurancc that transactions are recorded as necessary (o peuuil prepatation of financial staleienls in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to the financial statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control with reference to financial statements may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may
deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2022, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAIL.

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accoungants
ICAI Firm Egﬂiﬁﬁ:tion Number: 101049W/E300004

Membership Number: 209567

UDIN: 22209567AJLMTR8769

Place: Bengaluru
Date: May 23, 2022



T-Hills Private Limited {formerly, Jaganmata Praperty Developers Private Limited)

CiN: U452067G2015PTC 101944

Batance Sheet for the year ended March 31, 2022

(Att amounts in Indian Rs. Lakh, Unless OUtherwise Stated)

ASSETS
Non-current assets
{a) FInancial assets

Other financial assets
(0} Deferred tax assets (net)
(c) Assels for cuirenl lax (el
(d) Other non-current assets
Total non-current assets
Current assets
(a) Inventories
(b) Financial assets

Trade receivables

Cash and cash equivalents
(c) Other current assets
Total current assets

Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY

(a) Equity share capital

(b} Other equity

Total equity

LIABILITIES

Non-current liabilities

(a) Finanoial liabilitico
Borrowings

Total Nor- current liabilities

Current liabilities
(a) Financial liabilities
Borrowings

Trade payabies

a) totai outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
b) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and smail

enterprises
(b) Other current liabilities
Total current liabilities

Total equity and liabilities

Summary of significant accounting policies

Note

o bW

~I

10
11

12(a)

12(b)
13

14

2.2

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP

Chartered Accountant
ICAl Firm regletrapd

goeer

Membership no.: 202567

Place: Bengaluru
May 23, 2022

number. 'HUT04YW/ESUULU4

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

1.57 457
232,74 201
5.3 =
. 2,436.30
319.62 2,439.88
27,639 95 18 835.40
1.470.26 .
9,711.53 952.62
772.71 -
39,594.45 19,788.02
39,914.07 22,227.90
1.00 1.00
(692.22) (6.21)
(691.22) (5.21)
10,755,37 16,246.24
10,755.37 16,246.24
15,630.39 5,946.91
0.43 3
525.34 38.78
13,693.76 1.18
29,849.92 5,986.87
39,914.07 22,227.9C

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
T-Hills Private Limited
(furmeily, Jaganmata Properly Developers Private Limited)

7

B

Vishnumoorthi H
Director

DiN 05139138

] -

Nlraj Kitinerqauta

Chief Financial Office

Place. Benga'uru
May 23, 2022

PatilD S
Director
DIN 01599400

& fan

Bindu Doraiswamy

Company Secretary




T-Hills Private Limited (formerly, Jaganmata Property Developers Private Limited)

CIN: U45206TG2015PTC 101944
Statement cf Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in Indian Rs. Lakh, Unless Otherwise Stated)

Iheutig
Revenue from operations
Other income

Total

Expenses

Sub-contractor cost

Purchase of land stock

(Increase)/ decrease in inventories of land stock and work-in-progress
Finance costs

Other expenses

Total expenses

Profit/(loss) before tax

Tax expense
Current tax
Deferred tax

Total tax expense

Profit/(loss) for the year

Other comprehensive income/(loss) ("OCI’)
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
(i) Re-measurement gains/(losses) on defined benefit plans
(ii) Income tax relating to above
Total other comprehensive income/(loss)

Total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year (comprising profit and OCI)

Earnings per equity share ('"EPS')

(Nominal! value per equity share Rs. 100 (March 31, 2021 - Rs.100)
Basic (Rs))

Diluted (Rs.)

Weighted average number of equity shares used in computation of EPS
Basic - in numbers

Diluted - in numbers

Summary of significant accounting policies

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountanis
ICAIl Firm registraliin number: 101049W/E300004

afiner Director
Membership no.: 209567 DIN 0513913

Niraj Kumar

Place: Bengaluru

May 23, 2022 May 23, 2022

Adarsh Ranka Vishnumoorthi H

Place: Bengaiuru

T-Hills Private Limited

N4

tam
Chief Financial Officer

Note March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

996 25 2971

2,989.82 17,398 37
15 (8,804.54) (18,375.25)
16 3,412.91 60599
17 2,322.31 34585
916.75 4.67
(916.75) (4.67)
(230.73) (2.01)
(230.73) (2.01)
(686.02) (2.66)
(686.02) (2.66)
(68,602) (268)
(68,602) (266)

1,000 1,000

1,000 1,000

22
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
(formerly, Jaganmata Property Developers Private Limited)
L
izt S8
__ PatiDs
Director

DIN 01582400

Bindu Doraiswamy
Company Secretary




T-Hills Private Limited (formerly, Jaganmata Property Developers Private Limited)

CIN: U45206TG2015PTC 101944
Statement of cash flow for the year ended March 31, 2022
(All amounts in Indian Rs. Lakh, Unless Otherwise Stated)
A. Cash Tlow o operating aclivitivs
Profit/(loss) before tax
Adjustments to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Finance costs
Operating profit before working capital changes
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables
Decrease/(increase) in inventories
Decrease/(increase) in other assets
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in other liabilities
Cash (used in)/ received from operations
Income tax paid (net)
Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities

B. Cash flows from investing activities
Net cash flows from / (used in) investing activities

C. Cash flows from financing activities
Loans taken from related parties
Proceeds from issue of debentures
Debenture issue charges
Finance costs paid
Net cash (used in)/from financing activities
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents (A + B + C)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash eguivalents
Cash on hana
Balances with banks
In current accounts
Cash and cash equivalents reported in cash flow statement

Summary of significant accounting policies

Refer Note 9 for Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per report of even date

For S.R. Ratliboi & Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAl Firm registratipnumber; 101049W/E300004

ptiarsh Ranka
Pafiner
Membership no.: 209567

Place: Bengaluru
May 23, 2022

Note March 31, 2622  March 31, 2021
(916.75) (4.67)
3,412.91 605.99
2,496.16 601.32
(1,470.26) :
(8,804.55) (18,375 25)
1,663.59 630.74
486.99 -
13,616.06 14.70
7,987.99 (17,128.49)
(85.31) -
7,902.68 (17,128.49)
86623 2,434.90
- 15,700.00
= (53.48)
(10.00) (1.88)
856.23 18,079.56
8,758.91 951.07
952 .62 1.55
9,711.53 952.62
March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
g
0.10 -
9,711.43 952,62
9,711.53 952.62
2.2
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
T-Hills Private Limited
(formerly, Jaganmata Property Developers Private Limited)
@‘ / ‘-‘-—_———1.
Vishnumoorthi H PatilD 8
Director Director
DIN 05139136 DIN 01528400
Niraj Kumar Bauta Bindu Doraiswamy
Chief Financial Office Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru
May 23, 2022
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T-Hilis Private Limited (formerly, Jaganmata Property Developers Private Limited)
CIN: U45206TG2015PTC101944

Statement of changes in equily for the year ended March 31, 2022

(i amounts in Indian o, Lalth, Unlooo Utherwise Gtated)

A. Eyuily share capital

Parti As at Movement As at Movement As at
agichiars 01 April 2020  during 2020-21  March 31,2021  during 2021-22 March 31, 2022
Equity shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid 1.00 - 1.00 - 1.00
1.00 = 1.00 = 1.00

Note: Also refer note 10

C. Other equity
Reserves and surplus
Retained

Particulars . Total
Earnings
Balance as at 1 April 2020 (3.55) (3.55)
Profit for the year (2.66) (2.66)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year 6.21 6.21)
Ralanae as at March 31, 72021 0.21 0.21)
Profit for the year (686.02) (686.02)
Other Comprehensive Income - -
Total comprehensive income for the year (692.22) (692.22)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 (692.22) (692.22)
Note: Also refer note 11
Summary of significant accounting policies 22

The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Assdciates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accourntgze? T-Hills Private Limited
i ggflior number: 101049W/E300004 (rarmerly,.Jagary Property Developers Private Limited)
. R =
Vishnumoorthi H PatiiD S
Director Director
DIN 05139136 DIN 01599400

B dn

Bindu Doraiswamy

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Place: Bengaluru Place: Bengaluru
May 23, 2022 May 23, 2022




T-Hilis Private Limited (formeriy, Jaganmata Property Developers Private Limited)
CIN: U45206TG2015PTC101944

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in Indian Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

1 Corporate information

T-Hilts Private Limited (formerly, Jaganmata Property Developers Private Limited) (the ‘Company’) was incorporated on November 27,
2015 under the provisions of the Companies Act applicable in India (“Act”) The registered office is located at Survey No-08,0pp to
Mahindra satyam, Side hne of Godrej Green Bullding Kondapura Hyderabad TG, 500033, India. The Company is engaged in the business
of real estate development. Its debentures are listed on BSE Limited (BSE)

The Company has incurred losscs of Rs. 686.02 lakhs (March 31, 2021: Rs.2.66 lakhs) for the year ended March 31, 2022, and it has
avnanaplalal isaes 0 e N87 22 [akhis (hddn 031 2070 B A2 1 RNST agplns] Bnlly eaplial of By 1 Rakh ag 3t hieet 410, 204 ¢ (e
A P0RT T by Tl Crrprany bl A Il phaes uf o uputatiuns angd 0 provtus bl o3euuling o rodl betats projast, | urnor,
Puravankara Limited, the holding company is committed to provide financial and operational support to the Company for its profitable
UpLralony I the foreseeusie futurng,

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on May 23, 2022.
2. Significant accounting policies
2.1 Basis of preparation

In accordance with the notification issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs, the Company has adopted Indian Accounting Standards
('Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and
presentation requirements of Division Il of Schedule Ili to the Companies Act, 2013 (Ind AS compliant Schedule I1l). The financial
statements of the Company are prepared and presented in accordance with Ind AS.

On March 24, 2021, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) through a notification, amended Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013
and the amendments are applicable for financial periods commencing from April 01, 2021. The preparation of financial statements is after
taking into consideration the effect of the amended Schedule lil. The Company has also reclassified the previous year figures in
accordance with the requirements applicable in the current year.

The financial statements have been prepared on the h|stonca| cost basis, except for certain flnanC|aI |nstruments which are measured at
fair values at the end of e oW storical costis-generally based on the fair

value of the consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies
(a) Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at
the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best knowledge of current events and actions,
uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets or liabilities. The effect of change in an accounting estimate is recognized prospectively.

(b) Current versus non-current classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-current classification.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

- Expected to be realized or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle

- Held primarily for the purpose of trading

- Expected to be realized within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settie a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting
pecriod

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when:

- It is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

- It is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period
All other liabilities are classified as non-current.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash and cash equivalents. The
Company has evaluated and considered its operating cycle as four years for the purpose of current and non-current classification of
assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets/ liabilities are classified as non-current assets/ liabilities.




T-Hilis Private Limited {formerly. Jaganmata Property Developers Private Limited)
CiN: U45206TG2015PTC101944

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in Indian Rs. Lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

(c) Impairment

A. Financial assets

The Company assesses at each date of paiance sneet whether a financiol assct or a group of financial assets is impaired. Ind AS 109
requires expected credil losses to be measured through a loss allowance. The Company recognizes lifetime expected losses for all
contract assets and / or all trade receivables that do not constitute a financing transaction. For all other financial assets, expected credit
Insses are measured at an amount equal to the 12-month expected credit losscs or at an amount cqual to the life time expected credit
losoeo if the oredit rislcor the financial usscl hus iureased sigilivanlly since lnllldl recuygnitiung,

U Men tinanainl anantn

the Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication exists, or
when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's (CGU) net selling price and its value in use, The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those from other
assets or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be
identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Impairment losses are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying
amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

(d) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds,

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized/inventorised as part of the cost of the respective asset. All other borrowing

costs are charged to statement of profit and loss.

The Company treats as part of general borrowings any borrowing originally made to develop a qualifying asset when substantially all of
the activities necessary to prepare that asset for its intended use or sale are complete.

(e) Inventories

Direct experditure relating to real estate activity is inventorised. Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) during construction period
is inventorised te the extent the expenditure is directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use.
Other expenditure (including borrowing costs) incurred during the construction period which is not directly attributable for bringing the
asset to its working condition for its intended use is charged to the statement of profit and loss. Direct and other expenditure is determined
based on specific identification to the real estate activity.

i. Work-in-progress: Represents cost incurred in respect of unsold area (including land) of the real estate development projects or cost
incurred on projects where the revenue is yet to be recognized. Work-in-progress is valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

ii. Finished goods - Stock of Flats: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.
ii. Raw materials, components and stores: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is determined based on FIFO basis.
iv. Land stock: Valued at lower of cost and net realizable value.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated
costs necessary to make the sale,

) Land

Advances paid by the Company to the seller/ intermediary toward outright purchase of land is recognized as land advance under other
assets during the course of obtaining clear and marketable title, free from all encumbrances and transfer of legal title to the Company,
whereupon it is transferred to land stock under inventories/ capital work in progress.

Q) Revenue recognition

i) Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is measured
based on the transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other credits, if any, as specified in the contract
with the customer. The Company presents revenue from contracts with customers net of indirect taxes in its statement of profit and loss.
The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance obligations to which a portion
of the transaction price needs to be allocated. in determining the transaction price, the Company considers the effects of variable

consideration, the existence of significant financing components, noncash consideration, and consideration payable to the customer, if
any.
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T-Hilis Private Limited (formerly, Jaganmata Property Developers Private Limited)
CIN: U45206TG2015PTC101944

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in Indian Rs. Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

Revenue from reai estate deveiopment of residential or commerciai unit is recognised at the point in time, when the control of the asset
is transferred to the customer.

oo Lol ol s aie ol undlulded wharg O Land and constugtud Uty o 4o sustomun, WHISH NUYY bouh IuBHunst vy e L ompany
ds & single performances obligation, as they are highly interrelated/ Interdapandant

" The performance obligation in relation to real estate development is satisfied upon completion of project work and transfer of control of
the asset to the customer

For contracts involving sale of real estate unit, the Company receives the consideration in accordance with the terms of the contract in
proportion of the percentage of completion of such real estate project and represents payments made by customers to secure
performance obligation of the Company under the contract enforceable by customers. Such consideration is received and utilised for
specific real estate projects in accordance with the requirements of the Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016.
Consequently, the Company has concluded that such contracts with customers do not involve any financing element since the same
arises for reasons explained above, which is other than for provision of finance to/from the customer

Further, for projects executed through ioint development arrangements not being jointly controlled operations, wherein the land
owner/possessor provides land and the Company undertakes to develop properties on such land and in lieu of land owner providing land,
the Company has agreed to transfer certain percentage of constructed area or certain percentage of the revenue proceeds, the revenue
from the development and transfer of constructed area/revenue sharing arrangement in exchange of such development rights/ land is
being accounted on gross basis on launch of the project. Revenue is recognised over time using input method, on the basis of the inputs
to the satisfaction of a performance obligation relative to the total expected inputs to the satisfaction of that performance obligation.

The revenue is measured at the fair value of the land received, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred. When
the fair value of the land received cannot be measured reliably, the revenue is measured at the fair value of the estimated construction
service rendered to the land owner, adjusted by the amount of any cash or cash equivalents transferred. The fair value so estimated is
considered as the cost of land in the computation of percentage of completion for the purpose of revenue recognition as discussed above.

Contract balances:

Contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. if the Company performs by
transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is
recognised for the earned consideration that is conditional.

irade receivapie represents the Company's right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional (i.e., only the passage of time is
required before payment of the consideration is due).

Contract liabiity is the obligation to transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Company has received consideration (or an
amount of corsideration is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods or services to
the customer, a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Company performs under the contract.

Cost to obtain a contract:

The Company recognises as an asset the incremental costs of obtaining a contract with a customer if the Company expects to recover
those costs. The Company incurs costs such as sales commission when it enters into a new coniract, which are directly related to winning
the contract. The asset recognised is amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the customer of the goods or
services to which the asset relates.

ii) Interest income

Interast income, including income arising from other financial instruments measured at amartised cost, is recognised using the affactiva
interest rate method.

jii) Dividend income

Revenue is recognised when the Company’s right to receive dividend is established, which is generally when shareholders approve the
dividend

(h) Foreign currency translation

Functional and presentation currency

items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the Company operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements are presented in Indian rupee (INR), which is the
Company’s functional and presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions and balances
i) Inilial recognition - Foreign currency transactions are recorded In the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the
exchange rate between the reporting currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

if) Corversivi - Fureign cutrency monglary ilems are relranslated using the exchange rate prevalling at the reporting date. Non-monetary
ilems, which zie measured in lerms of historical cost denominated in a foreign currency, are reported using the exchange rate at the date
of the transaction. Non-monetary items, which are measured at fair value or other similar valuation denominated in a foreign currency,
are translated using the exchange rate at the date when such value was determined,




T-Hills Private Limited (formerly, Jaganmata Property Developers Private Limited)
CIN: U45206TG2015PTC101944

Notes to Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2022

(All amounts in indian Rs. Lakhs, uniess otherwise stated)

i) Exchange differences - The Company accounts for exchange differences arising on translation/ settlement of foreign currency
monetary iteme as income or as expense in the period in which they arise

(i) Retirement and other employee benefits

Ihe pravisiins of the Crplayess’ Provident Fundes & Miscollunoous Provislons Act, 1047 nad | mployces’ Gtate Insurance Act, 1940,
Payinent ol Gralully Aul, 18T2 vt AR Dok AppleAbis 1S LOHPENY 48 e HUMBEE o eMployess are less than the minimum roquired
employees under the said acts.

(U Income taxes
Income tax expense comprises current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the year.

Current and deferred tax are recognized in the statement of profit and loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively

i Current income tax

Current income tax for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities based on the taxable income for that period. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted
or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date.

i. Deferredincome tax

Deferred income tax is recognized uging the balance sheet approach, deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences at the balance
sheet date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes, except when the
deferred income tax arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination
and affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss at the time of the transaction.

Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax
losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the
carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilized.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the asset is realized
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income
orin equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

(k) Provisions and contingent liabilities

A provision is recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past event, it is probable that
an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation. If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that
reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognized as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events and whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also arises
in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses it in the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote,

If the Company has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation under the contract is recognised and measured as a provision.
However, before a separate provision for an onerous contract is established, the Company recognises any impairment loss that has
occurred on assets dedicated to that contract.

[0} Financial Instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are recognized when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.
Financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at fair value at initial recognition. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
fthe acquisition or issue of finaicial assels and financial liablllles wre sdded (o or deducted from the tar value measured on mitial
recognition of financlal assel or financial liability, except tor transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets and
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss which are immediately recognized in statement of profit and loss.

i. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a business
whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the

SRIVAF
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financiai asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding

Financial assets at fair valiue thrangh profit or loss

Finanria assaty are meacured at fair valuo through protit or 1060 unicos it is meoaurcd at amortized Cosl ue al fai valie Gl
vllier cunpiehiensive income on Initlal recognition. Investments in debt instruments have been measured at fair value through profit
vy

ili.  Debtinstruments at amortized cost
investment in debt instrument is measured at fair value through profit and loss.
A 'debtinstrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and
b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)
on the principal amount outstanding.
After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognized in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables.

iv.  De-recognition of financial asset
The Company derecognizes a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire or it
transfers the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for de-recognition under ind AS 109.

v.  Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
or as payables, as appropriate. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts. The subsequent measurement of financial liabiiities depends on their classification, which is described below.

vi.  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated
upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred
for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term.

vii.  Financial liabilities at amortized cost
Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest (‘EIR’) method. Gains and losses are
recognized ir, profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR amortization process. Amortized cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EiR. The
EIR amortizetion iz included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

vii.  De-recognition of financial liability
A financial fiability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of
a new liability, The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

ix.  Fair value of financial instruments
In determining the fair value of its financial instruments, the Company uses following hierarchy and assumptions that are based on

market conditions and risks existing at each reporting date.

Fair value hierarchy:

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

> Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

> Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
For assefs and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

(m) Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Partly paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to
the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding during the period I1s adjusted for events such as bonus issue that have changed the number
of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders and the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

(n) Cash and cash equivalents
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The Company considers all highly liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash that are subject
to an insignificant risk of change in value and having original maturities of three months or less from the date of purchase, to be cash
equivalents Cash and cash equivalents consist of balances with banks which are unrestricted for withdrawal and usage.

2.3 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
Faleroramcnl oo, cuperien, aooely und Tublitey and (e seeompsnying digciosurse, and e disciosurs of sonunygort habintios.
Uncertalnty about these judgments, assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to the carrying
amount of aooofa or linhilitinn affantad in futurs prriada

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management makes judgement, estimates and assumptions which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements.

The key judgements, estimates and assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its judgements, assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to market
changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they
occur.

i) Revenue from contracts with customers
The Company applied the following judgements thal significanlly aflfecl lie deterinalivn of the amount dnd Lining ol 1@venue from
contracts with customers:

a) Identification of performance obligation

Revenue consists of sale of undivided share of land and constructed area to the custemer, which have been identified by the Company

as a single performance obligation, as they are highly interrelated/ interdependent. In assessing whether performance obligations

relating to sale of undivided share ofland and constructed area are highly interrelated/ interdependent, the Company considers factors

such as:

- whether the customer could benefit from the undivided share of land or the constructed area on its own or together with other
resources readily available to the customer.

- whether the entity will be able to fulfil its promise under the contract, to transfer the undivided share of land without transfer of
constructed area or transfer the constructed area without transfer of undivided share of land.

b) Timing of satisfaction of performance obligation
Revente from sale of real estate units is recognised when (or as) control of such units is transferred to the customer. The entity
assesses tming of transfer of control of such units to the customers as transferred over time if one of the following criteria are met:

- The customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s performance as the entity performs.

- The enlity's performance creates or enhances an asset that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced.

= The entity's performance does not create an asset with an alternative use to the entity and the entity has an enforceable right to
payment for performance completed to date.

If control is not transferred over time as above, the entity considers the same as transferred at a pointin time.

For contracts where control is transferred at a point in time the Company considers the following indicators of the transfer of control
of the asset to the customer:

- When the entity obtains a present right to payment for the asset.

- When the entity transfers legal title of the asset to the customer.

- When the entity transfers physical possession of the asset to the customer.

- When the entity transfers significant risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to the customer.

- When the customer has accepted the asset.

The aforesaid indicators of transfer of control are also considered for determination of the timing of derecognition of investment

property.

¢) Significant financing component

For contracts involving sale of real estate unit, the Company receives the consideration in accordance with the terms of the contract
in proportion of the percentage of completion of such real estate project and represents payments made by customers to secure
performance obligation of the Company under the contract enforceabie by customers Such consideration is received and utitised for
specific real estate projects in accordance with the requirements of the Real Estate (Regulation and Development) Act, 2016.
Consequently, the Company has concluded that such contracts with customers do not involve any financing element since the same
arises for reasons explained above, which is other than for provision of finance to/from the customer.

if) Estimation of net realizable value for inventory and land advance

Inventory is stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value (NRV).

NRV for completed inventory property is assessed by reference to market conditions and prices existing at the reporting datc and is
determined by the Company, based on comparable transactions identified by the Company for properties in the same geographical
market serving the same real estate segment.

NRV in respect of inventory property under construction is assessed with reference to market prices at the reporting date for similar
completed property, less estimated costs to complete construction and an estimate of the time vaiue of money to the date of completion.
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VIt 1ESpeCt 1 1and inventory and land advance given, the net recoverable value is based on the present vaiue of future cash flows,
which depends on the estimate of, amang other things the likelihood that a project will be completed, the expected date of complction,
the discount rate used and the estimation of sale vrices and constriction rosts

) impairment of non-financial assets

Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or cash generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its
fair value less costs of disposal and its vaiue in use. The fair value less costs of disposal calculation is based on available data from
binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs for disposing
of the asset The value in use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years
and do not include restructuring activities that the Company is not yet committed to or significant future investments that will enhance the
asset's performance of the CGU being tested. The recoverable amount is sensitive to the discount rate used for the DCF model as well
as the expected fuiure cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes

iv) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on quoted prices
in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The inputs to these models are taken
from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values.
Judgments include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and market risk. Changes in assumptions about these factors
could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

v) Measurement of financial instruments at amortized cost

Finenial insbiunenl aie subseyuenlly nigdsuigd gl dliurizey LUsL USINY the erseuve Inerest 'EIRY) method. |he computation of
amortized cost is sensitive to the inputs to EIR including effective rate of interest, contractual cash flows and the expected life of the
financial instrument. Changes in assumptions about these inputs could affect the reported value of financial instruments,

vi) Provision for litigations and contingencies

Provision for litigations and contingencies is determined based on evaluation made by the management of the present obligation arising
from past events the settlement of which is expected to result in outflow of resources embodying economic benefits, which involves
judgements around estimates the ultimate outcome of such past events and measurement of the obligation amount. Due to judgements
involved in such estimation the provision is sensitive to the actual outcome in future periods.

vii) Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses,
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry
forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, which involves judgements around estimation of future taxable profit.
Due to judgements involved in such estimation, the same is sensitive to the actual outcome in future periods.

2.4 impact of pandemic Covid-19

The outbreak of Covid-18 pandemic globally and in India has caused significant disturbance and slowdown of economic activities.
Consequently, the Company's operations were slowed down/suspended and accordingly the financial statements for the year ended
March 31, 2022 are adversely impacted.

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from the COVID-19 pandemic on the carrying value of inventories and
other assets. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions because of this
pandemic, the Company, as at the date of approval of these financial statements has used internal and external sources of information
to assess the expected future performance of the Company. The Company has performed sensitivity analysis on the assumptions used
and based on the current estimates, the Company expects that the carrying amount of these assets as at period end, are fully recoverable.
The management has estimated the future cash flows for the Company with the possible effects that may result from the COVID-19
pandemic and does not foresee any adverse impact on realising its assets and in meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due. The
actual impact of the COVID-19 pandemic may be different from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements.

Further, the Company's management has also made a detailed assessment of the progress of construction work an its ongoing projects
uring the parled of (makdmin and hao oonoludsed that the samc wus unly u leinpuiary sluwduwn i gCliviies aid lids dueutUinyly
inventorized the borrowing casts incurred in accordance wilh Ind AS 23,

The Company wili centinue to clasely ahserve the evalving srenarin and take intn arcnint any future developmente aricing out of tho
same.
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3 Other Financial Assets (Unsecured, considered good)
Security deposits 1.57 187

4 Deferred tax assets (net)
Deterred tax asset arising on account of :

Defarrad 1ax on lnssas 7771 201
232.74 2.01
Reconciliation of deferred tax assets/ (liabilities) (net)
Net deferred tax asset at the beginning of the year 201 =
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognized in profit and loss 230.73 2.01
Tax income/(expense) during the year recognized in OCI = -
Net deferred tax asset at the end of the year 232.74 2.01

The unused tax losses can be carried forward for a maximum period of eight assessment years immediately succeeding the assessment year
in which the loss was first computed and would expire if not utilised starting from financial year 2024-25 to 2029-30

The major components of income tax expense for the years ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are:
Statement of profit and loss:

Profit or loss section:
Current tax:
Current income tax charge ; s

Deferred tax:
Relating to origination/ reversal of deferred tax

> Recreasalfinarease) in deferred tax Assets (730 73) (2.01)
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss (230.73) (2.01)
OCl section:;

Deferred tax retated to items recognised in OCI during the year E =

Reconciiiation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India's tax rate

Accounting profit before income tax (916.75) (4.67)
Statutory income tax rate applicable 2517% 2517%
Tax on accounting profit at statutory income tax rate (230.73) (1.18)

Tax effect of the following amounts in calculating taxable income:
Others - (0.83)
Income tax expense (230.73) (2.01)

The Taxation Laws (Amendment) Ordinance, 2019 (‘the Ordinance’) provides an option to domestic companies to pay income-tax at a lower
rate of 25.17%, if it opts for not availing of certain specified exemptions or incentives. The Company has made an assessment of the impact of
the Ordinance and has decided to opt for the lower tax rate of 25.17% from the financial year beginning April 01, 2020.

[3,]

Assets for current tax (net)
Advance income tax [net of provision for taxation Rs. Nil 85.31 -
(March 31, 2021, Rs.Nif)

85.31 -
6 Other assets
a Non-current
Advances for land contracts - 2,354.23
Duties and taxes recoverable - 82.07
- 2,436.30
b Current
Advances to suppliers 365.18 -
Prepaid expenses 339.69 -
Duties and taxes recoverable 67.84 -
772.71 -
7 Inventory
(valued at lower of cost and net realisable value)
Work-in-progress 27,639,95 18,835 40
27,639.95 18,835.40

Note: Details of assets pledged are as per note no.12
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8 Trade receivables
(Unsecured)
Considered good
Dues from related parties
Mies fram nthers

Trade receivables Ageing Scheduie
As at 31 March 2022

March 31, 2022

1 470 26

—— i e g

1,470.26

Current _Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

March 31, 2021

but not Lessthan 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
due 6 Months —1 year years
;J:(;ﬂ(;sputea Trade Receivables — considered 1.470.26 } ) 1,470.26
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk ) ) ) ) B
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables - considered good - - - - -
Disputed Trade receivables ~ which have
significant increase in credit risk ) s ) ) ) B )
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired - s - = -
Total - - - - - 1,470.26
As at 31 March 2021
Current Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
but not Less than 6 months 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
due 6 Months -1 year years
Undisputed Trade Receivables — considered
good ) } R )
Undisputed Trade Receivables — which have
significant increase in credit risk ) B ) ) * .
Undisputed Trade receivable — credit impaired - - - - -
Drsputed Trade receivables - considered good - = - -
Disputed Trade receivables — which have
significant increase ir: credit risk ) B ) B )
Disputed Trade receivables — credit impaired = = - - - -
Total - - = - - - -
9 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on hand 0.10 -
Balances with banks
In current accounts 9,711.43 952.62
9,711.53 952.62
Cash and cash equivalents reported in cash flow statement 9,711.53 952 62
Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities
(a) Borrowings: Current|  Non-current Total
Balance as at April 1, 2020 3,512.01 o 3,512.01
Add: Cash inflows 2,434.90 15,700.00 18,134.90
Less: Cash outflows - (55.34) (65.34)
Add: Finance cost - 602.17 602.17
Others* (0.59) - (0.59)
Balance as at March 31, 2021 5,946.91 16,246.24 22.193.15
Add: Cash inflows 866.23 E: 866.23
Less: Cash outflows (10.00) - (10.00)
Add: Finance cost 765.17 2,640.39 3,405.56
Others* (69.18) - (69.18)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 7.499.13 18,886.63 26,385.76

*represents adjustments towards withholding taxes, etc
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10 Equity share capital

Arlhnitlerl shiarps
BUUY areh B 20 L DY cenade ahienssa ol e 180 ear

lasucd, subscribed and fully paid-up shares
1,000 (March 31, 2021 - 1,000) equity shares of Rs. 100 each

a. Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity shares

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021

80 ELL

1.00 1.00

March 31, 2021

Number Rs.In Lakhs Number Rs. In Lakhs
Balance at the beginning of the year 1,000 1.00 1,000 1.00
issued during the year < - . =
Ouislanding at the end of the year — 1,000 1.00 1,000 — 1.00

o

. Terms/rights attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 100 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote
per share The Company declares and pays dividends in Indian Rupees. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Meeting, except interim dividend

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after
distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders

o

- Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Equity shares of Rs. 100 each fully paid-up

No. of shares % holding in No. of shares % holding in the
the class class
100.00% 1,000 100.00%

Puravenkara Limited 1.000

As per records of the Company, including its register of shareholders/members and other declarations received from shareholders regarding
beneficiai interes!, the above shareholding represents both legal and beneficial ownership of shares

d. Shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2022

Promoter Name Class of No. of shares Change during No. of shares % of Total Shares % change during
equity shares at the the year at the end of the year
beginning of the year
the year
Puravankara Limited Equity shares 1,000.00 - 1,000.00 100% 0%
of Rs.100
each

As at March 31, 2021

Promoter Name Class of No. of shares Change during Mo. of shares % of Total Shares % change during

equity shares at the the year at the end of the year
beginning of the year
the year

Puravankars Limited Equity shares 1,000.00 - 1,000,00 100% 0%
of Rs.100
each

€. Shares held by holding/ultimate holding and/or their subsidiaries/associates
Puravankara Limited, the holding company
1,000 (March 31, 2021 - 1,000) equity shares of Rs. 100 each 1.00 1.00
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11 Other equity March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Reserves and surplus
Retained earnings

Balance at the beginning of the year (6.21) (3.55)
Total comprehensive income for the year (686.02) (2.66)
Balance at the end of the year (692.22) (6.21)
Total other equity (692.22) {6.21)

12 Borrowings

a Non-current borrowings

Secured

890 (March 31, 2021: 1,570) Listed Rated Secured 10,765.37 16,246.24

Redeemable Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs. 10 lakhs
10,765.37 16,246.24

b Current borrowings

Secured

680 (March 31, 2021: Nil) Listed Rated Secured Redeemable 8,127.94 -

Non-Convertible Debentures of Rs, 10 lakhs each

Unsecured

Loans from related party (refer Note 21) 7,502.45 5,946.91

15,630.39 5,946.91

Note 1: Assets pledged as security
The carrying amounts of assets pledged as security for current and non-current borrowings are:

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
inventories 27,639.95 18,835.40

Note 2. Detaiis of nature of security, guarantees given by directors and repayment terms of borrowings
Category of loan March 31, 2022|March 31, 2021| Effective Repayment details Nature of security
interest rate

Non-current Borrowings:
Debentures 10,755.37 16,246.24 16%|Repayable by 2028 - 2029 a) Underlying project inventory
b) Corporate guarantee from
Holding Company

Current borrowings:
Debentures 8,127.94 - 16%|Repayable based on a) Underlying project inventory
availability of distributable cash |b) Corporate guarantee from
Holding Company

Loans from related party 7,502.45 5,946.91 12%|Repayable based on Unsecured
availability of distributable cash

Note 03:
The above loans were applied for the purpose for which such loans were obtained. Also, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of the
above loans and interest thereon.

Note 04:

| isted Rated Secured Redeemable Mon Convortiblo Debenturos:

The Gompany had issusd 1,050 deberluies uf Re. 10 Lukhy vath ayyiogaling to 18, 16,500 12KRS by way of private placement on Decernber 23,
2020, which were listed on BSE Limited on December 31, 2020. The aforesaid debentures are secured by way of mortgage of inventaries of the
Company, the fellow subsidiary and the Holding Company requiring 100% asset cover as per debenture trust deed (actual asset cover of 125% as
al March 31, 2022),
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13 Trade pavahles Marrh 31, 2027 March 11, 2024
lrade payasble
- Tnfai nutstanding diies nf micrn entarprises and cmall enlo pivou 0.13
- Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro and small enterprises 409.37 34 83
Payable to refated parties - other than micro and small enterprises (refer note 21) 115.97 3.95
525.77 38.78

Disclosures of dues to Micro, Smail and Medium enterprises

The information as required under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 has been determined to the
extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the Company. The Company has not received any
claim for interest from any supplier under the said Act.

The principal amount remaining unpaid 0.43 -
Interest due thereon remaining unpaid = =
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium

Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the payment made to the supplier

beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have
been paid but beyond the appointed day during the year)

The amount of interest accrued during the year and remaining unpaid - -
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable for earlier years - -

Trade payables Ageing Schedule
As at 31 March 2022
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 Total
year years

| outstandi ) )
Total o,l.staﬂdlng_dues of micro enterprises 0.43 ) B ) 0.4
and smal! enterprises

+. 1+ i |
qual omstancli.ng duels of creditors (_)ther than 523 45 104 5 085 52534
micro enterprises and small enterprises
Disputec dues of micro enterprises and smali ) } u
enterprises
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro ) ) ) B _
enterprises and small enterprises
523.88 1.04 - 0.85 525.77

As at 31 March 2021
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

Less than 1 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 Total
year years

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises
and small enterprises B ) i )
thal outstanc_jlng dues of creditors cher than 37.93 ) 0.85 ) 38.78
micro enterprises and smali enterprises
Disputed dues of micro enterprises and small
enterprises = ) ) )
Disputed dues of creditors other than micro
enterprises and small enterprises ) ) ) )

37.93 - 0.85 - 38.78

14 Other current liabilities
Deferred revenue 13,522.44
Statutory dues payable 171.32 1.18
13,693.76 1.18
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1A (Insreasel denrease inlaventorles of land stock antd work«dneprogress

Inventory at the beginning at the year
Land stock
Woiliin-progivags
Inventary af the end nf the year
Land stock
Work-in-progress

16 Finance costs
Interest on financial liabilities
- On borrowings
Bank and other charges

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

- 46015
16,033.40 3
27,639.95 18,835.40
(8,804.54) {18,375.25)

3,405.56 602.17
7.35 3.82
3,412.91 605.99

Note: Gross of interest of Rs.3,412.24 [akhs (March 31, 2021: Rs.604.13 lakhs) inventorised to qualifying work in progress. The rate
used to determine the amount of borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation is the effective interest rate of the underlying borrowings

which is in the range of 12% to 16%.

17 Other expenses

Travel and conveyance

Legal and professional *

Development management fee (refer note 21)
Advertising and sales promotion

Rates and taxes

Brokerage and commission

Security charges

Repairs and maintenance - others
Miscel'laneous expenses

* Payment to auditors [included in legal and professional charges]
Audit fee
Reimbursement of expenses

10.85 =
584.55 295.19
706.58 -
821.72 -

205 7.37
142.95 40.00
24.48 3.27

27.54 =

1.59 0.02
2,322.31 345.85
16.00 0.10
0.31 -
16.31 0.10

Note: Payment to auditors for the year ended March 31, 2021, represents payment to a firm of Chartered accountants other than S.R

Batliboi & Associates LLP
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18 Fair value measurements

The fair value of the financiat assets and fiabilities is determined as the amaunt At which the instrument cnild he sxchanaed in A crment
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale

The flimaing mathods and assumptions ware used to e@stimate the fair vaiuog:

>The management assessed that the carrying values of cash and cash equivalents, trade payables, and other financial assets and
liabilities (as listed below) approximate their fair values largely either due to their short-term maturities

> The management assessed that the carrying values of borrowings and other financial assets and liabilities approximate their fair
values based on cash flow discounting using parameters such as interest rates, tenure of instrument, creditworthiness of the customer
and the risk characteristics of the financed project, as applicable

These financial assets and financial labilities as summarised below are classified as level 3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to
the use of unobservable inputs as explained above. There have been no transfers between levels during the year

Break up of financial assets/liabilities measured at amortised cost: Notes March 31,2022 March 31, 2021
Financial asscts :

Trade receivables 8 1,470.26 -
Cash and cash equivalents 9 9,711.53 952,62
Other non-current financial assets 3 1.57 1.57
11,183.36 954.19
Financial liabilities : Notes March 31,2022  March 31, 2021
Non-current borrowings 12 10,755.37 16,246.24
Current borrowings 12 15,630.39 5,946.91
Trade payanie 13 525.77 38.78
26,911.53 22,231.93

19 Financial risk management

The Company's principal financial fiabilities, comprise borrowings, trade payables and other payables. The main purpose of these
financial liab'lites is to finance the Company’s operations, The Company’s principal financial assets include cash and bank balances
and trade recetvables that derive directly from its operations.

The Company's activities expose it to market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk.

The Company's management oversees the management of these risks and ensures that the Company’s financial risk activities are
governed by appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company’s policies and risk objectives

a. Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of loss that arise on outstanding financial instruments if a counterparty default on its obligations. Credit risk arises
from cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables and other receivables

Expected credit loss for trade receivables under simplified

The recoverabiiity of trade receivables is assured as the registration of sold residential units is not processed till the time the Company
does not receive the entire payment. Hence, as the Company does not have significant credit risk, it does not present the information
related to ageing pattern

The aliowance for expected credit [oss for current and previous years is Nil
b. Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities and the availability of funding through
an adequate amount of committed credit facilities to meet obligations when due and also generating cash flow from operations.

Management monitors the Company'’s liquidity position and cash and cash equivalents on the basis of expected cash flows and
maintaining debt financing plans

The break-up of cash and cash equivalents is as detailed in note 09.
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Maturities of financial Habilities

The tables below analyze the Company’s financial habilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their contractual maturities for all
financial liabiiities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows

March 31, 2022 Less than 1 1yearto 4 4 years and Total
year years above

FitidiLidl HaDHIUES - Cutrein

Borrowings* 8,215.17 9,333.52 - 17,548.69

Trade payables 52577 - - 525.77

Financial liabilities - Non current

Borrowings* - - 19,678.70 19,678.70

TOTAL 8,740.94 9,333.52 19,678.70 37,753.16

* Gross of transaction costs

March 31, 2021 Less than 1 1yearto 4 4 years and Total
year years above

Financiai liabilities - current

Borrowings 5,946,91 - - 5,946.91

Trade payables 38.78 - - 38.78

Financial liabilities - Non current

Borrowings - - 16,190.31 16,190.31

TOTAL 5,985.69 - 16,190.31 22,176.00

. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices
Market risk comprises two types of risk: interest rate risk and other price risk, such as equity price risk and commodity/ real-estate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in Interest rate. The
entity’s exposure to the risk of changes in Interest rates relates primarily to the entity’s operating activities (when receivables or payables are
subject tc different interest rates) and the entity’s net receivables or payables.

The Company is affected by the price volatility of certain commodities/ real estate. Its operating activities require the ongoing development of
real estate. The Company’s management has developed and enacted a risk management strategy regarding commodity/ real estate price
risk and #s mitigation The Company is subject to the price risk variables, which are expected to vary in line with the prevailing market
conditions.

Interest rate sensitivity:

The Company’'s borrowings are carried at amortised cost and no possible change in interest rates are expected. They are therefore not
subject to interest rate risk, since neither the carrying amount nor the future cash flows will fluctuate because of a change in market interest
rates. Also refer note 12 for details of terms of borrowings.

Capital Management
The Company’s objectives when managing capital are to maximise returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, and
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, [ssue new shares or sell assets 1o reduce debt,

The Company monitors its capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. Net debt comprises current and non-current
borrowings less cash and cash equivalents. Total equity comprises equity share capital and other equity

Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-current borrowings 10,755.37 16,246.24
Current borrowings 15,630.39 5,946.91
Less: Cash and cash equivalents (9,711.53) (952.62)
Net debt 16,674.23 21,240.53
Total equity (691.22) (5.21)
Gearing ratio (24.12) (4,076.77)

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capitai during the current and previous years
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21 Related party transactions

(1) Names of related parties and nature of relationship with the Company

(i) Party where control exists
Puravankara Limited - Holding Company

(ii) Feliow Subsidiaries
Provident Housing Limited

(iii) Key management personnel ('KMP')

Names Designation
Vishnumoorthi H Director
PatiiD S Director
Bindu Doraiswamy Company Secretary

Nirgj Kumar Gautam CFO

(2) The transactions With related Barties fer the vear are as fallows-

Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021
Particulars Holding Fellow Holding Fellow
Company Subsidiary Company Subsidiary
Loans received from
Puravankara Limited 866.23 - 2,446 60
Loans repaid to
Puravankara Limited - 11.70
Development management fee
Provident Housing Limited - 706.58 - -
Advertising and sales promotion
Provident Housing Limited - 21.86 - 3.57
Finance cost
'Puravankara Limited 765.17 - - =
iGuarantees received
‘Puravankara Limited 2,637.07 - 16,246.24 -

During the current year, Puravankara Limited has made payments of Rs.437 lakhs towards statutory dues payable by the
Compary, on behalf of the Company, which were subsequently repaid by the Company. During the previous year, Provident
housing Limited has made payments of Rs.358.714 fakhs towards land advance payable by the Company, on behalf of the
Company, which were subsequently repaid by the Company.

(3) The related parties balances as at the year-end are as follows:

Year ended March 31, 2022 Year ended March 31, 2021
Particulars Holding Fellow Holding Fellow
Company Subsidiary Company Subsidiary
Loans taken
Puravankara Limited 7,502 45 5,946.91 -
Due to related parties
Puravankara Limited = - 0.02 -
Provident Housing Limited - 115.97 - 3.95
Guarantees received
Puravankara Limited 18,883.31 - 16,246.24 -

{7} Nther information;

1. Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash There have heen na giarantess
provided or received for any related party receivables or payables, other than thase disclased ahove, The Company has not
recorded any provision/ write-oft of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties.

2. In respect of the transactions with the related parties, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 188 of the
Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act), and the details have been disclosed ahnve as required hy the applicahle arcninting
slatidaids. The puvislutis UF SHUHUE 171 U LHE AULLIE HUL SRBIEEBIE 10 the Lampany.
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22 Financiai Ratios

a Ratio Current ratio
Wutnesatus Lurrent Assets
Denominator Current Liabilities

Ratios/Measures

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Current Assets (A) 39,594 45 19.788.02
Current Liabiiities (B) 29,849.92 5,986.87
Current Ratio | C} = (A) / (B) 1.33 3.31
Ff‘o of change from previous year -59.87%

The ratio has changed mainly due to higher increase in current liabilities compared to increase in current assets.

b Ratio Debt Equity ratio

Numerator Total Debt
Shareholder’'s Equity

Denominaicr

[Ratios/Measures

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Tota) Debt (A} 26,385.76 22:193.15
Sharenolder's Equity (B) (691.22) (5.21)
Debt Equity ratio [ €) = (A) / (B) -38.17 -4259.61
% of change from previous year -99.10%

The ratio has changed mainly due to increase in borrowings and increase in losses compared to previous year,

¢ Ratio Debt Service Coverage ratio
Numerator Earnings available for debt service
Denominator Debt service
Ratios/Measures March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Loss pefore tax (A) (916.75) (4.67)
Ada: Non cash operating expenses and finance cost

Finance costs (B) 3,412.91 605,99

Earnings available for debt services (C) = (A)+(B) 2,496.16 601.32
Finance costs (D) 3,412.91 605,99
Repayment of non-current borrowings (E) - -
Cebt service (F) = (D) + (E) 3,412.91 605.99
Debt service coverage ratio (G) = (C) / (F) 0.73 0.99
% of change from previous year -26.29%
The ratio has changed mainly due to increase in finance costs compared to previous year,

d Ratio Return on equity ratio
Numerator Profit after tax
Denominator Average shareholders' equity
Ratios/Measures March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Loss after tax (A) (BB6.02) (2.66)
Closing Shareholders Equity (B) (691.22) (5.21)
Average shareholder's equity [(Opening + Closing)/2] (C) (348.22) (3.88)
Return on equity ratio (D ) = (A) [ (C) * 1.97 0.68
% of change from previous year 187.89% |
The ratio has changed mainly due to increase in losses compared to previous year

e Ratio Trade payable turnover ratio
Numerator Total purchases
Denominator Average trade payables
Ratlos/Measures March 31, 2022 [March 31, 2021
Total purchases (B) 3,886.07 17,42B.08
Closing trade payables 525.77 3878
Average Trade Payables [(opening + closing) /2] (A) 282.28 27.31
Trade payables turnover ratio (C ) = {A) / (B) 1412 B38.13
% of change from previous year -97.79%

The ratio has changed mainly due to purchase of land for the project in the previous year
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f  Ratio Return on capital employed
Numerator Earning before interest and taxes
Denominator Capital Employed (Total equity and Total borrowings)
Ratios/Measures ilarch 31, 2022 [March 31, 2021
Loss afler tax (A) (686.02) (2.68)
Adjustments-
Add: Totai tax expenses (B) (230.73) (2.01)
Add: Finance cost (C) (net of amount inventorised) - =
Earnings before interest and tax (D} = (A) + (B) + (C) (916.75) (4.67)
Total Equity (E") (691.22) (5.21)
Taotal borrowings (F) 26,385.76 22,193.15
Capital Employed (G) = (E) * (F) 25,694.54 22,187.94
Return on capital employed (G) = (D) / (G) (0.04) (0.00)
% of change from previous year 16849.84%

The ratio has changed mainly due lo increase in losses compared to previous year
Notes :
Inventory turnover ratio, Net capital turnover ratio Trade receivable turnover ratio, Net profit ratio and Return on investment are not

applicable to the Company

2

w

Other Statutory Information

(i} There are no proceedings initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder

(i} The Company not have any transactions with companies s*ruck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies
Act, 1956

(i) The Company do not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period

(iv) The Company have not traded or invested in Cryptocurrency transactions or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

(v) No funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds)
by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded
in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any
manner whatscever by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vi) No funds have been received by the Company from any persons or enlities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (“Uitimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

(vii) The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account, in the tax assessments
under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

(viii) The Company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or any other lender.
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24 Revenue from contracts with customers:

241 Contract balances

Match 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Tiade 1=Leivablys 1,470 28 -
Gontraoct liabilitioe  deferred revenue 1AR?? dd =

Trade receivables are generally on credit terms of upto 10 to 30 days.

Contract liabiliies represents transaction price allocated to unsatisfied performance obligations.

24.2 Performance obligations
Aggregate amount of the transaction price allocated to the performance obligations that are unsatisfied as of ‘
Revenue to be recognised at a point in time 40,118 11 =
Revenue to be recognised over time - - ‘

* The entity expects to satisfy the performance obligations when (or as) the underlying real estate projects to which such

performance obligations relate are completed. Such real estate projects are in various stages of development and are expected to
be completed in the coming periods of upto four years. |

24.3 Assets recognised from the costs to obtain or fulfil a contract with a customer ,

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021 ‘
inventories |
- Work-in-progress 15,879.00 - ;
Prepaid expenses (represents brokerage costs pertaining to sale of real estate units) 310.77 - I
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25 Commitments and centingencies
a. Commitments
(i) As at March 31, 2022, the Company did not have any contracts remaining to be executed on capital account that were not provided
for (March 31, 2027 - Rs. Nil)

b. Contingent liabilities March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1j impact ot pending litigations
Demand from Bangalore International Airport Area Planning Authority towards plan 472.94 Nit

sanction charges under dispute

Note: The Company does not expect any reimbursement in respect of the above contingent liabilities and it is not practicable to estimate
the timing of the cash outflows, if any, in respect of aforesaid matters and it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the above obligations/claims

26 The Company's business activities fall within a single reportable segment, i.e. real estate development. Hence, there are no additional
disclosures to be provided under Ind-AS 108 - Segment information with respect to the single reportable segment, other than those
already provided in the financial statements

The Company is domiciled in India. The Company's revenue from operations from external customers relate to real estate development
in India and all the non-current assets of the Company are located in India

March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
27 Unhedged foreign currency exposure Nil Nit

28 Standards issued but not yet effective
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standard) Amendment Rules 2022 dated March 23, 2022
to amend the foliowing Ind AS which are effective from April 01, 2022:
(i) Onieiuus Cuniliduls — CUsLs U Uity 2 UMY — AHEHAMEATS 1o (hd AS 4/
(i) Reference to the Conceptual Framework — Amendments to Ind AS 103
(iii) Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use — Amendments to Ind AS 16
(iv) Ind AS 101 First-time Adoption of indian Accounting Standards — Subsidiary as a first-time adopter
(v) Ind AS 109 Financial Instruments — Fees in the '10 per cent' test for derecognition of financia! liabilities
(vi) Ind AS 41 Agricutture — Taxation in fair value measurements
The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company.

29 The financiel statements of the Company for the year ended March 31, 2021, included in these financial statements, have been audited
by the predecessor auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on June 22, 2021
Summary of significant accounting policies 22
The accompanying notes referred to above form an integral part of the financial statements

As per report of even date

For S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants T-Hills Private Limited
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